# Medicaid Advantage Plus 2024 Member Handbook



# RiverSpring MAP

(HMO D-SNP)

For more information, call us at:

1-800-362-2266 (TTY 711)

www.RiverSpringMAP.org

H6776\_002\_Medicaid Member Handbook

# **Table of Contents**

WELCOME TO RIVERSPRING MAP MEDICAID ADVANTAGE PLUS PROGRAM	1
HELP FROM MEMBER SERVICES	1
ELIGIBILITY FOR ENROLLMENT IN THE MAP PROGRAM	1
New York Independent Assessor Program (NYIAP) - Initial Assessment Process	2
SERVICES COVERED BY RIVERPSRING MAP PROGRAM	4
Adult Outpatient Mental Health Care	7
Adult Outpatient Rehabilitative Mental Health Care	
Community Oriented Recovery and Empowerment (CORE) Services	7
Adult Mental Health Crisis Services	8
Adult Outpatient Addiction Services	8
Adult Residential Addiction Services	8
Adult Inpatient Addiction Rehabilitation Services	8
MEDICAID SERVICES NOT COVERED BY OUR PLAN	12
SERVICES NOT COVERED BY RIVERSPRING MAP OR MEDICAID	13
SERVICE AUTHORIZATION, APPEALS AND COMPLAINTS PROCESSES	13
DISENROLLMENT FROM RIVERSPRING MAP PROGRAM	27
CULTURAL AND LINGUISTIC COMPETENCY	28
MEMBER RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES	29
ELECTRONIC NOTICE OPTION	31

#### WELCOME TO RIVERSPRING MAP MEDICAID ADVANTAGE PLUS PROGRAM

Welcome to RiverSpring MAP (HMO D-SNP) Medicaid Advantage Plus (MAP) Program. The MAP Program is designed for people who have Medicare and Medicaid and who need health services and Community Based Long Term Services and Supports (CBLTSS) like home care and personal care to stay in their homes and communities as long as possible.

This handbook tells you about the added benefits RiverSpring MAP covers since you are enrolled in the RiverSpring MAP Program. It also tells you how to request a service, file a complaint or disenroll from RiverSpring MAP Program. The benefits described in this handbook are in addition to the Medicare benefits described in the RiverSpring MAP Medicare Evidence of Coverage. Keep this handbook with the RiverSpring MAP Medicare Evidence of Coverage. You need both to learn what services are covered, and how to get services.

#### **HELP FROM MEMBER SERVICES**

You can call us at any time, 24 hours a day, seven days a week, at the Member Services number below.

There is someone to help you at Member Services:

Monday through Friday
8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. ET

Call 1-800-362-2266; TTY: 711

If you need help at other times, call us at 1-800-362-2266; TTY 711.

Your call will be answered by our on-call service, which is available

If you have special needs with hearing or vision, we will gladly accommodate you and help you find the services that meet your needs. We can assist you by reading RiverSpring MAP documents to you. We can also provide information in other languages and has free language interpreter services available for non-English speakers, including free aids and services to people with disabilities to communicate effectively with us, such as:

24 hours per day, seven days per week.

- Qualified interpreters
- Written information in other formats (large print, audio, or other electronic formats)

If you would like to receive information in another language, or require translation or other assistance, please call Member Services at 1-800-362-2266, TTY: 711, and request to speak to an interpreter or request translation or other assistance.

#### **ELIGIBILITY FOR ENROLLMENT IN THE MAP PROGRAM**

MAP is a program for people who have both Medicare and Medicaid. You are eligible to join the MAP Program if you meet **all** of the following requirements:

1) Are age **18** and older,

- 2) Reside in the Plan's service area which are the counties of Bronx, Kings, Nassau, New York, Queens, Richmond, and Westchester,
- 3) Have Medicaid,
- 4) Have evidence of Medicare Part A & B coverage,
- 5) Are eligible for nursing home level of care (as of time of enrollment) using the Community Health Assessment (CHA),
- Are capable at the time of enrollment of returning to or remaining in your home and community without jeopardy to your health and safety,
- 7) Are expected to require at least one of the following Community Based Long Term Services and Supports (CBLTSS) covered by the Medicaid Advantage Plus Plan for more than 120 days from the effective date of enrollment:
  - a. Nursing services in the home
  - b. Therapies in the home
  - c. Home health aide services
  - d. Personal care services in the home
  - e. Adult day health care,
  - f. Private duty nursing; or
  - g. Consumer Directed Personal Assistance Services, and
- 8) Must enroll in RiverSpring MAP Medicare Advantage Dual Special Needs Plan.

You must choose one of the doctors from the Plan to be your Primary Care Provider (PCP). If you decide later to change your Medicare Plan, you will also have to leave RiverSpring MAP.

The coverage explained in this handbook becomes effective on the effective date of your enrollment in RiverSpring MAP Program. Enrollment in the MAP Program is voluntary.

#### New York Independent Assessor Program (NYIAP) - Initial Assessment Process

The NYIAP will conduct an initial assessment for individuals who have expressed an interest in enrolling in a Managed Long Term Care (MLTC) plan. The initial assessment process includes completing the:

- Community Health Assessment (CHA): The CHA is used to see if you need personal care and/or consumer directed personal assistance services (PCS/CDPAS) and are eligible for enrollment in a MLTC plan.
- Clinical appointment and Practitioner Order (PO): The PO documents your clinical appointment and indicates that you:
  - o have a need for help with daily activities, and
  - o that your medical condition is stable so that you may receive PCS and/or CDPAS in your home.

The NYIAP will schedule both the CHA and clinical appointment. The CHA will be completed by a trained registered nurse (RN). After the CHA, a clinician from the NYIAP will complete a clinical appointment and PO a few days later.

RiverSpring MAP will use the CHA and PO outcomes to see what kind of help you need and create your plan of care. If your plan of care proposes PCS and/or CDPAS for more than 12 hours per day on average, a separate review by the NYIAP Independent Review Panel (IRP) will be needed. The IRP is a panel of medical professionals that will review your CHA, PO, plan of care and any other necessary medical documentation. If more information is needed, someone on the panel may ask to examine you or discuss your needs with you. The IRP will make a recommendation to RiverSpring MAP about whether the plan of care meets your needs.

Once NYIAP has completed the initial assessment steps and determined that you are eligible for Medicaid Managed Long Term Care, you can then choose which MLTC care plan in which to enroll. Because you also are enrolled in Medicare for this same plan, you have chosen to combine your benefits and enroll in RiverSpring MAP.

#### **RiverSpring MAP Enrollment Process**

NYIAP will notify you of the outcome of their evaluation and assessment. The NYIAP evaluation and initial assessment must be completed and on record prior to enrollment in our Plan.

When you choose to enroll in RiverSpring MAP, we will begin the enrollment process. RiverSpring MAP will accept and process applications in the order received, without restriction and without discrimination as to age, sex, race, creed, physical or mental handicap or developmental disability, national origin, sexual orientation, health status, or cost for health services.

RiverSpring MAP will verify your entitlements (Medicaid and Medicare) and type of enrollment, and set up a meeting at your place of residence for one of our licensed Medicare agents to present the RiverSpring MAP program. Afterwards, our Intake Nurse will visit you to conduct a comprehensive assessment to determine your health care needs for development of your care plan. The Intake Nurse will review with you the proposed plan of care, which requires your agreement in order to enroll. The Intake Nurse will also contact your physician regarding your interest in enrollment, the services covered, and your plan of care.

For enrollment, you will be asked to sign documents including an enrollment agreement, medical release form, and privacy notice acknowledgment. Enrollment applications must be submitted to New York Medicaid Choice (NYMC), the New York State managed care enrollment program, by the 25<sup>th</sup> of the month, and then submitted to the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) for an effective date beginning on the 1<sup>st</sup> day of the next month. If you meet the established criteria and your Medicaid is active, your enrollment will usually become effective the 1<sup>st</sup> day of the following month. You will receive a personal RiverSpring MAP identification card for plan-covered Medicare and Medicaid services. Remember, you need to keep your regular Medicaid card to get services that are not covered by RiverSpring MAP.

#### **Denial of Enrollment Process**

You will be denied enrollment in RiverSpring MAP if you:

- Do not meet the eligibility criteria stated above; or
- Are enrolled in, and do not want to disenroll from:
  - > another Medicaid managed care plan; or
  - > a Home and Community-Based Services waiver program; or
  - > a Hospice; or
  - > the State OPWDD facility or waiver program; or
- Had previously been involuntarily disenrolled from our Plan; or
- Do not consent to and sign the required documents.

You may appeal the denial with NYMC by calling NYMC at 1-888-401-6582.

#### **Withdrawal of Enrollment Application**

You may withdraw your enrollment application at any time prior to the deadline imposed by NYMC or CMS by contacting RiverSpring MAP in writing or verbally.

- NYMC deadline is usually noon on the 20th of the month;
- CMS deadline is prior to the effective date of enrollment. You may also call 1-800-Medicare to withdraw.

#### **Development of Initial Plan of Care (POC)**

RiverSpring MAP will review the NYIA CHA and the PO to inform our development of your person centered Plan of Care (POC). In addition, we will review the comprehensive assessment conducted by our Intake Nurse, which also takes into consideration your home environment and community support. The Intake Nurse will present the proposed POC to you for your acceptance, which is required in order to submit your enrollment application. The NYIA CHA, PO, and your initial POC are valid for 12 months unless another CHA is required due to a significant change in your condition or at your request. RiverSpring MAP will update your POC at least every 12 months, or more frequently if your condition changes, or at your request, or otherwise appropriate.

#### Plan Member (ID) Card

You will receive your RiverSpring MAP identification (ID) card within 14 days of your effective enrollment date. Please verify that all information is correct on your card. Be sure to carry your identification card with you at all times along with your Medicaid card. If your card becomes lost or is stolen, please contact Member Services at 1-800-326-2266 TTY/TDD 711.

#### SERVICES COVERED BY RIVERPSRING MAP PROGRAM

#### **Deductibles and Copayments on Medicare Covered Services**

Many of the services that you receive, including inpatient and outpatient hospital services, doctor's visits, emergency services and laboratory tests are covered by Medicare and are described in the RiverSpring MAP (HMO D-SNP) Medicare Evidence of Coverage. Chapter 3 of RiverSpring MAP Medicare Evidence of Coverage explains the rules for using plan providers and getting care in a medical emergency or urgent care situation. Some services have deductibles and copayments. These amounts are shown in the Benefit Chart in Chapter 4 of the RiverSpring MAP Medicare Evidence of Coverage under the column "What

you must pay when you get these covered services". Because you have joined RiverSpring MAP, and you have Medicaid, RiverSpring MAP will pay these amounts. You do not have to pay these deductibles and co-payments except for those that apply to some pharmacy items.

If there is a monthly premium for benefits (see Chapter 1 of the RiverSpring MAP Medicare Evidence of Coverage) you will not have to pay that premium since you have Medicaid. We will also cover many services that are not covered by Medicare but are covered by Medicaid. The sections below explain what is covered.

#### **Care Management Services**

As a member of our Plan, you will get Care Management Services. Our Plan will provide you with a Care Manager who is a health care professional – usually a nurse or a social worker. Your Care Manager will work with you and your doctor to decide the services you need and develop a care plan. Your Care Manager will also arrange appointments for any services you need and assist with arranging transportation to those services.

Through the Person Centered Service Planning process, your assigned nurse works with you, your physician and your family, to develop a Plan of Care (POC) that fits your particular needs. We make sure that you receive the health care services that you need. Our experienced health care professionals are available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year. Your care team keeps track of how you are doing, attends to changes in your health, provides care, educates your caregivers on how to assure quality services tailored to your needs, teaches you how to best help yourself, answers questions you may have, and helps you obtain other services you may need.

Your written POC includes medically necessary services, covered and paid for by RiverSpring MAP, and coordination of non-plan covered services to meet your needs. Your POC describes the services you need, how often you need them, and for how long. It identifies, evaluates and helps you manage physical, emotional and social factors that affect your well-being. Your POC is reviewed at least every 12 months, and more often as your condition requires or upon your request. As your needs change, the POC will change to meet those needs. Your Care Manager will review the POC with you and discuss any changes. You are welcome to call your Care Manager or any member of your care management team with any questions or concerns at 1-800-362-2266.

You will receive at least one monthly telephone contact from your care management team. The assessment nurse, as a member of your care management team, will make home visits at least once a year to complete a comprehensive assessment of your health and to identify any changes or needs you may have. We will work cooperatively with your physician regarding your POC, as well as other health care professionals to ensure you receive the services you need.

You may request services outside of the approved POC, however, you will need to obtain Plan approval and prior authorization for your request. Your Care Manager, working with your care management team, will handle your request. All covered services require prior approval by RiverSpring MAP, except for certain services preapproved by us. For some

services, a new clinical assessment may be initiated, and medical documentation specific to the request may be required.

For after-hours care, the RiverSpring MAP on-call service and Nurse Hotline are available 24 hours per day, 7 days per week, at 1-800-362-2266, TTY 711.

#### Additional Covered Services

Because you have Medicaid and qualify for the RiverSpring MAP program, our Plan will arrange and pay for the extra health and social services described below. You may get these services as long as they are medically necessary. Your Care Manager will help identify the services and providers you need. In some cases, you may need a referral or an order from your doctor to get these services. You must get these services from the providers who are in the RiverSpring MAP network. If you cannot find a provider in our Plan, you will need to request approval and prior authorization from RiverSpring MAP to obtain these services from an out-of-network provider, except for medical emergency or urgently needed care.

RiverSpring MAP will consider requests for covered services from an out-of-network provider when the service is not available from an in-network provider and RiverSpring MAP agrees that the services are medically necessary. Upon our approval of your request, we will issue an approval letter to you, and process a single case agreement to authorize and set forth the quantity and duration of the approved services by the out-of-network provider. If any service is not approved, or is partially approved, we will issue an Initial Adverse Determination (IAD) to you that sets forth the reasons for denial and outlines the appeals process.

There is no need for you to request authorization for the services as stated on your POC. In addition, prior authorization is not required for a routine annual dental, eye, and hearing exam. Otherwise, prior authorization is required for the following services, and is handled by your Care Manager in coordination with RiverSpring departments for specific items, such as durable medical equipment and supplies, rehabilitation therapies, etc. To request prior authorization, you or your doctor should call RiverSpring MAP at 1-800-362-2266; TTY users call 711.

### **Services Requiring Prior Authorization**

- Outpatient Rehabilitation
- Personal Care (such as assistance with bathing, eating, dressing, toileting and walking)
- Home Health Care Services Not Covered by Medicare including nursing, home health aide, occupational, physical and speech therapies
- Nutrition
- Medical Social Services
- Home Delivered Meals and/or meals in a group setting such as a day care
- Social Day Care
- Private Duty Nursing
- Dental\*
- Social/Environmental Supports (such as chore services, home modifications or

respite)

- Personal Emergency Response System
- Adult Day Health Care
- Nursing Home Care not covered by Medicare (provided you are eligible for institutional Medicaid)
- Inpatient Mental Health Care Over the 190-day Lifetime Medicare Limit
- Audiology\*
- Durable Medical Equipment
- Medical Supplies
- Prosthetics and Orthotics
- Optometry\*
- Consumer Directed Personal Assistance Services

\*prior authorization not required for annual dental, eye and hearing exam.

# Covered Behavioral Health (Mental Health and Addiction) Services Adult Outpatient Mental Health Care

- Continuing Day Treatment (CDT): Provides seriously mentally ill adults with the skills and supports necessary to remain in the community and be more independent. You can attend several days per week with visits lasting more than an hour.
- Partial Hospitalization (PH): A program which provides mental health treatment designed to stabilize or help acute symptoms in a person who may need hospitalization.

### Adult Outpatient Rehabilitative Mental Health Care

- Assertive Community Treatment (ACT): ACT is a team approach to treatment, support, and rehabilitation services. Many services are provided by ACT staff in the community or where you live. ACT is for individuals that have been diagnosed with serious mental illness or emotional problems.
- Mental Health Outpatient Treatment and Rehabilitative Services (MHOTRS): A program that provides treatment, assessment, and symptom management. Services may include individual and group therapies at a clinic location in your community.
- Personalized Recovery Oriented Services (PROS): A complete recovery-oriented program if you have severe and ongoing mental illness. The goal of the program is to combine treatment, support, and therapy to aid in your recovery.

# <u>Adult Outpatient Rehabilitative Mental Health And Addiction Services For</u> **Members Who Meet Clinical Requirements. These are also known as CORE.**

<u>Community Oriented Recovery and Empowerment (CORE) Services</u>: Personcentered, recovery program with mobile behavioral health supports to help build skills and promote community participation and independence. CORE Services are available for members who have been identified by the State as meeting the high need behavioral health risk criteria. Anyone can refer someone, or self-refer, to CORE Services.

 Psychosocial Rehabilitation (PSR): This service helps with life skills, like making social connections; finding or keeping a job; starting or returning to school; and using community resources.

- Community Psychiatric Supports and Treatment (CPST): This service helps you manage symptoms through counseling and clinical treatment.
- Family Support and Training (FST): This service gives your family and friends the information and skills to help and support you.
- Empowerment Services Peer Supports: This service connects you to peer specialists who have gone through recovery. You will get support and assistance with learning how to:
  - live with health challenges and be independent
  - help you make decisions about your own recovery, and
  - find natural supports and resources.

#### **Adult Mental Health Crisis Services**

- Comprehensive Psychiatric Emergency Program (CPEP): A hospital-based program which provides crisis supports and beds for extended observation (up to 72 hours) to individuals who need emergency mental health services.
- **Mobile Crisis and Telephonic Crisis Services:** An in-community service that responds to individuals experiencing a mental health and/or addiction crisis.
- Crisis Residential Programs: A short term residence that provides 24 hours per day services for up to 28 days, for individuals experiencing mental health symptoms or challenges in daily life that makes symptoms worse. Services can help avoid a hospital stay and support the return to your community.

#### **Adult Outpatient Addiction Services**

**Opioid Treatment Centers (OTP)** are Office of Addiction Services and Supports certified sites where medication to treat opioid dependency is given. These medications can include methadone, buprenorphine, and suboxone. These facilities also offer counseling and educational services. In many cases, you can get ongoing services at an OTP clinic over your lifetime.

#### **Adult Residential Addiction Services**

Residential Services are for people who are in need of 24-hour support in their recovery in a residential setting. Residential services help maintain recovery through a structured, substance-free setting. You can get group support and learn skills to aid in your recovery.

#### **Adult Inpatient Addiction Rehabilitation Services**

**State Operated Addiction Treatment Center's (ATC)** provide care that is responsive to your needs and supports long-term recovery. Staff at each facility are trained to help with multiple conditions, such as mental illness. They also support aftercare planning. Types of addiction treatment services are different at each facility but can include medication-assisted treatment, problem gambling, gender-specific treatment for men or women, and more.

**Inpatient Addiction Rehabilitation** programs can provide you with safe setting for the evaluation, treatment, and rehabilitation of substance use disorders. These facilities offer 24 hour, 7-day a-week care that is supervised at all times by medical staff. Inpatient

services include management of symptoms related to addiction and monitoring of the physical and mental complications resulting from substance use.

**Inpatient Medically Supervised Detox** programs offer inpatient treatment for moderate withdrawal and include supervision under the care of a physician. Some of the services you can receive are a medical assessment within twenty-four (24) hours of admission and medical supervision of intoxication and withdrawal conditions.

#### Limitations

- Nursing Home Care is covered for individuals who are considered to be permanently placed in a nursing home, provided you are eligible for institutional Medicaid coverage.
- Enteral formula and nutritional supplements are limited to individuals who cannot obtain nutrition through any other means, and to the following conditions:
- 1) tube-fed individuals who cannot chew or swallow food and must obtain nutrition through formula via tube; and
- 2) individuals with rare inborn metabolic disorders requiring specific medical formulas to provide essential nutrients not available through any other means.

Under certain conditions, adults who have HIV, AIDS, or HIV-related illness, or other disease or condition, may be eligible for additional oral nutrition.

Coverage of certain inherited disease of amino acid and organic acid metabolism shall include modified solid food products that are low-protein or which contain modified protein.

#### Telehealth

You can receive some services through telehealth when appropriate. It is your choice if you receive services in person or through telehealth. If you have additional questions on telehealth, please contact your Care Manager.

#### **Dental Services**

Starting **January 31, 2024**, RiverSpring MAP (HMO D-SNP) will cover crowns and root canals in certain circumstances so that you can keep more of your natural teeth.

In addition, replacement dentures and implants will only need a recommendation from your dentist to determine if they are necessary. This will make it easier for you to access these dental services.

To learn more about these services, call Member Services at 1-800-362-2266, 9:00am-5:00pm. For TTY, call 711.

#### **Mobile Crisis Telephonic Triage Response Services**

Starting **March 1, 2024,** RiverSpring MAP (HMO D-SNP) will cover Mobile Crisis Telephonic Triage and Response services for members under the age of 21. This service is already available to members 21 years of age and older.

Currently, members under the age of 21 can access the Mobile Crisis Telephonic Triage and Response service by using their Medicaid card. Effective March 1, 2024, members can use their RiverSpring MAP plan card to receive this service.

Mobile Crisis teams can help you, your child, or other members of your family with mental health and addiction crisis symptoms, such as:

- increased anxiety,
- depression,
- stress due to a major life event or changes, or
- needing to speak with someone to prevent relapse.

You and your family can call and talk to a professional about a crisis, get support, and be linked to other services when needed.

If you are experiencing a crisis, you can call or text 988 or chat at <a href="www.988lifeline.org">www.988lifeline.org</a>, 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

To learn more about these services, call Member Services at 1-800-362-2266, 9:00am-5:00pm. For TTY, call 711.

#### **Non-Emergency Medical Transportation Services**

Starting **March 1, 2024**, RiverSpring MAP will no longer cover non-emergency transportation as part of your Plan benefits. Non-emergency medical transportation services for members enrolled in RiverSpring MAP, a Managed Long Term Care Medicaid Advantage Plus Plan, will now be arranged by the New York State Department of Health Statewide Transportation Broker, known as Medical Answering Services (MAS). This will not change any of your other medical benefits.

To arrange non-emergency medical transportation on or after March 1, 2024, you or your provider must contact MAS at <a href="https://www.medanswering.com/">https://www.medanswering.com/</a> or call <a href="844-666-6270">844-666-6270</a> (Downstate) or <a href="866-932-7740">866-932-7740</a> (Upstate). If possible, you or your medical provider should contact MAS at least three days before your medical appointment and provide the details of your appointment (date, time, address, and name of provider) and your Medicaid identification number.

To learn more about these services, visit the <u>Department of Health Transportation</u> Webpage.

#### **Getting Care Outside the Service Area**

You must inform your Care Manager when you travel outside your coverage area. Should you find yourself in need of services outside your coverage area, your care manger should be contacted to assist you in arranging services.

#### **Emergency Service**

Emergency Service means a sudden onset of a condition that poses a serious threat to your health. For medical emergencies, please dial 911. Prior authorization is not needed for emergency service. However, you should notify RiverSpring MAP within 24 hours of the emergency. You may be in need of long term care services that can only be provided through RiverSpring MAP.

If you are hospitalized, a family member or other caregiver should contact RiverSpring MAP within 24 hours of admission. Your Care Manager will suspend your home care services and cancel other appointments, as necessary. Please be sure to notify your primary care physician or hospital discharge planner to contact RiverSpring MAP so that we may work with them to plan your care upon discharge from the hospital.

#### **Transitional Care Procedures**

New enrollees in RiverSpring MAP may continue an ongoing course of treatment for a transitional period of up to 60 days from enrollment with a non-network health care provider if the provider accepts payment at the Plan rate, adheres to RiverSpring MAP quality assurance and other policies, and provides medical information about the care to the Plan.

If your provider leaves the network, an ongoing course of treatment may be continued for a transitional period of up to 90 days if the provider accepts payment at the Plan rate, adheres to Plan quality assurance and other policies, and provides medical information about the care to the Plan.

#### Money Follows the Person (MFP)/Open Doors

This section explains the services and supports that are available through Money Follows the Person (MFP)/Open Doors. MFP/Open Doors is a program that can help you move from a nursing home back into your home or residence in the community.

You may qualify for MFP/Open Doors if you:

- Have lived in a nursing home for three months or longer, and
- Have health needs that can be met through services in their community

MFP/Open Doors has people, called Transition Specialists and Peers, who can meet with you in the nursing home and talk with you about moving back to the community. Transition Specialists and Peers are different from Care Managers and Discharge Planners. They can help you by:

- Giving you information about services and supports in the community.
- Finding services offered in the community to help you be independent.
- Visiting or calling you after you move to make sure that you have what you need at home.

For more information about MFP/Open Doors, or to set up a visit from a Transition

Specialist or Peer, please call the New York Association on Independent Living at 1-844-545-7108, or email <a href="mailto:mfp@health.ny.gov">mfp@health.ny.gov</a>. You can also visit MFP/Open Doors on the web at <a href="www.health.ny.gov/mfp">www.health.ny.gov/mfp</a> or <a href="www.health.ny.gov/mfp">www.ilny.us</a>.

#### MEDICAID SERVICES NOT COVERED BY OUR PLAN

There are some Medicaid services that RiverSpring MAP does not cover but may be covered by regular Medicaid. You can get these services from any provider who takes Medicaid by using your Medicaid Benefit Card. Call Member Services at 1-800-362-2266; TTY 711, if you have a question about whether a benefit is covered by RiverSpring MAP or Medicaid. Some of the services covered by Medicaid using your Medicaid Benefit Card include:

#### **Pharmacy**

Most prescription drugs are covered by RiverSpring MAP Medicare Part D as described in Chapter 6 of the RiverSpring MAP Medicare Evidence of Coverage (EOC). Regular Medicaid will cover some drugs not covered by RiverSpring MAP Medicare Part D. Medicaid may also cover drugs that we deny.

#### **Certain Mental Health Services, including:**

- Health Home (HH) and Health Home Plus (HH+) Care Management services
- Rehabilitation Services Provided to Residents of OMH Licensed Community Residences (CRs) and Family Based Treatment Programs
- OMH Day Treatment
- OASAS Residential Rehabilitation for Youth
- Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinics (CCBHC)
- OMH Residential Treatment Facility (RTF)

#### For MAP enrollees up to the age of 21:

- Children and Family Treatment and Support Services (CFTSS)
- Children's Home and Community Based Services (HCBS)

#### Certain Intellectual Disability and Developmental Disabilities Services, including:

- Long-term therapies
- Day Treatment
- Medicaid Service Coordination
- Services received under the Home and Community Based Services Waiver

#### **Other Medicaid Services**

- Directly Observed Therapy for TB (Tuberculosis)
- HIV COBRA Case Management
- Medically necessary ovulation enhancing drugs and medical services related to prescribing and monitoring the use of such drugs, for members meeting criteria

#### **Family Planning**

Members may go to any Medicaid doctor or clinic that provides family planning care.
 You do not need a referral from your Primary Care Provider (PCP).

#### Non-Emergency Medical Transportation

Starting **March 1, 2024,** non-emergency medical transportation is not covered as part of your Plan benefits. Non-emergency medical transportation services for members enrolled in RiverSpring MAP, a Managed Long Term Care Medicaid Advantage Plus Plan, will now be arranged by the New York State Department of Health Statewide Transportation Broker, known as Medical Answering Services (MAS). This will not change any of your other medical benefits.

#### SERVICES NOT COVERED BY RIVERSPRING MAP OR MEDICAID

You must pay for services that are not covered by RiverSpring MAP or by Medicaid if your provider tells you in advance that these services are not covered, AND you agree to pay for them. Examples of services not covered by RiverSpring MAP or Medicaid are:

- Cosmetic surgery if not medically needed
- Personal and Comfort items
- Services from a provider that is not part of the Plan outside of a medical emergency (unless RiverSpring MAP authorizes you to see that provider)

If you have any questions, call Member Services at 1-800-362-2266; TTY 711.

#### SERVICE AUTHORIZATION, APPEALS AND COMPLAINTS PROCESSES

You have Medicare and also get assistance from Medicaid. Information in this section covers your rights for all of your Medicare and most of your Medicaid benefits. In most cases, you will use one process for both your Medicare Medicaid benefits. This is sometimes called an "integrated process" because it integrates Medicare and Medicaid processes.

However, for some of your Medicaid benefits, you may also have the right to an additional External Appeals process. See page 23 for more information on the External Appeals process.

# <u>Section 1: Service Authorization Request (also known as Coverage Decision</u> Request)

Information in this section applies to all of your Medicare and most of your Medicaid benefits. This information does not apply to your Medicare Part D prescription drug benefits.

When you ask for approval of a treatment or service, it is called a **service authorization** 

**request (also known as a coverage decision request)**. To get a service authorization request, you must:

Contact your Care Manager with your request. You or your provider may call our toll-free Member Services number at 1-800-362-2266, TTY: 711; or send your request in writing to RiverSpring MAP, 80 West 225th St., Bronx, NY 10463.

We will authorize services in a certain amount and for a specific period of time. This is called an **authorization period**.

#### **Prior Authorization**

Some covered services require **prior authorization** (approval in advance) from RiverSpring MAP before you get them. You or someone you trust can ask for prior authorization. The following treatments and services must be approved **before** you get them:

- Adult Day Health Care
- Behavioral Health (Mental Health and Addiction) Services
- Consumer Directed Personal Assistance Service
- Dental Services\*
- Durable Medical Equipment
- Hearing Services\*
- Home Delivered and Congregate Meals
- Home Health Services
- Medical and Surgical Supplies, Parenteral/Enteral Formula, Nutritional Supplements, Hearing Aid Batteries
- Medical Social Services
- Inpatient Mental Health Over 190 Day Lifetime Limit
- Residential Health Care Facility Services
- Nutrition Services
- Outpatient Rehabilitation Services, including Physical, Occupational, Speech and Respiratory Therapies
- Personal Care Services
- Personal Emergency Response System
- Private Duty Nursing Services
- Prosthetics and Orthotics
- Social and Environmental Supports
- Social Day Care
- Vision Services\*

Prior authorization requests are handled by your Care Manager in coordination with various Plan departments for specific items, such as durable medical equipment and supplies, rehabilitation therapies, etc. To request prior authorization, you or your doctor should call RiverSpring MAP at 1-800-362-2266; TTY users call 711.

<sup>\*</sup> prior authorization not required for annual dental, eye and hearing exam.

#### **Concurrent Review**

You can also ask your Care Manager at RiverSpring MAP's Care Management Department to get more of a service than you are getting now. This is called **concurrent review**.

#### **Retrospective Review**

Sometimes we will do a review on the care you are getting to see if you still need the care. We may also review other treatments and services you already got. This is called **retrospective review**. We will tell you if we do these reviews.

#### What happens after we get your service authorization request?

The health plan has a review team to be sure you get the services you qualify for. Doctors and nurses are on the review team. Their job is to be sure the treatment or service you asked for are medically needed and right for you. They do this by checking your treatment plan against acceptable medical standards.

We may decide to deny a service authorization request or to approve it for an amount that is less than you asked for. A qualified health care professional will make these decisions. If we decide that the service you asked for is not medically necessary, a clinical peer reviewer will make the decision. A clinical peer reviewer may be a doctor, a nurse, or a health care professional who typically provides the care you asked for. You can ask for the specific medical standards, called **clinical review criteria**, used to make the decision about medical necessity.

After we get your request, we will review it under either a **standard** or a **fast-track** process. You or your provider can ask for a fast-track review if you or your provider believes that a delay will cause serious harm to your health. If we deny your request for a fast-track review, we will tell you and handle your request under the standard review process. In all cases, we will review your request as fast as your medical condition requires us to do so, but no later than mentioned below. More information on the fast track process is below.

We will tell you and your provider both by phone and in writing if we approve or deny your request. We will also tell you the reason for the decision. We will explain what options you have if you don't agree with our decision.

#### **Standard Process**

Generally, we use the **standard timeframe** for giving you our decision about your request for a medical item, treatment, or service unless we have agreed to use the fast-track deadlines.

A standard review for a prior authorization request means we will give you an answer within 3 workdays of when we have all the information we need, but no later than 14 calendar days after we get your request. If your case is a concurrent review where you are asking for a change to a service you are already getting, we will make a decision within 1 workday of when we have all the information we need but will give you an answer no later than 14 calendar days after we get your request.

- We can take up to 14 more calendar days if you ask for more time or if we need information (such as medical records from out-of-network providers) that may benefit you. If we decide to take extra days to make the decision, we will tell you in writing what information is needed and why the delay is in your best interest. We will make a decision as quickly as we can when we receive the necessary information, but no later than 14 days from the day we asked for more information.
- If you believe we should **not** take extra days, you can file a "fast complaint." When you file a fast complaint, we will give you an answer to your complaint within 24 hours. (The process for making a complaint is different from the process for service authorizations and appeals. For more information about the process for making complaints, including fast complaints, see Section 5: What To Do If You Have A Complaint About Our Plan.)

If we do not give you our answer within 14 calendar days (or by the end of the extra days if we take them), you can file an appeal.

- If our answer is yes to part or all of what you asked for, we will authorize the service, or treatment, or give you the item that you asked for.
- If our answer is no to part or all of what you asked for, we will send you an Appeal Decision Notice that explains why we said no. More information about how to appeal this decision can be found in Section 2: Level 1 Appeals.

#### **Fast Track Process**

If your health requires it, ask us to give you a fast service authorization.

- A **fast review** of a prior authorization request means we will give you an answer within 1 workday of when we have all the information we need but no later than 72 hours from when you made your request to us.
- We can take up to 14 more calendar days if we find that some information that
  may benefit you is missing (such as medical records from out-of-network providers)
  or if you need time to get information to us for the review. If we decide to take extra
  days, we will tell you in writing what information is needed and why the delay is in
  your best interest. We will make a decision as quickly as we can when we receive
  the necessary information, but no later than 14 days from the day we asked for
  more information.
- If you believe we should not take extra days, **you can file a fast complaint.** For more information about the process for making complaints, including fast complaints, see Section 5: What To Do If You Have A Complaint About Our Plan, below, for more information. We will call you as soon as we make the decision.
- If we do not give you our answer within 72 hours (or if there is an extended time period, by the end of that period) you can file an appeal. See Section 2: Level 1 Appeals, below for how to make an appeal.

To get a **fast service authorization**, you must meet two requirements:

1. You are asking for coverage for medical care you have not gotten yet. (You cannot get a **fast service authorization** if your request is about payment for medical care you already got.)

2. Using the standard deadlines could cause serious harm to your life or health, or hurt your ability to function.

If your provider tells us that your health requires a fast service authorization, we will automatically agree to give you a fast service authorization.

If you ask for a fast service authorization on your own, without your provider's support, we will decide whether your health requires that we give you a **fast service** authorization.

If we decide that your medical condition does not meet the requirements for **a fast service authorization**, we will send you a letter that says so (and we will use the standard deadlines instead).

- This letter will tell you that if your provider asks for the **fast service authorization**, we will automatically give a **fast service authorization**.
- The letter will also tell how you can file a fast complaint about our decision to give you a standard service authorization instead of the fast service authorization you asked for. (For more information about the process for making complaints, including fast complaints, see Section 5: What To Do If You Have A Complaint About Our Plan later in this chapter.)

If our answer is yes to part or all of what you asked for, we must give you our answer within 72 hours after we got your request. If we extended the time needed to make our service authorization on your request for a medical item or service, we will give you our answer by the end of that extended period.

If our answer is no to part or all of what you asked for, we will send you a detailed written explanation as to why we said no. If you are not satisfied with our answer, you have the right to file an appeal with us. See Section 2: Level 1 Appeals, below for more information.

If you do not hear from us on time, it is the same as if we denied your service authorization request. If this happens, you have the right to file an appeal with us. See Section 2: Level 1 Appeals, below for more information.

### If we are changing a service you are already getting

- In most cases, if we make a decision to reduce, suspend or stop a service we have already approved that you are now getting, we must tell you at least 15 days before we change the service.
- If we are reviewing care that you got in the past, we will make a decision about paying for it within 30 days of getting necessary information for the retrospective review. If we deny payment for a service, we will send a notice to you and your provider the day we deny the payment. You will not have to pay for any care you got that the plan or Medicaid covered even if we later deny payment to the provider.

You may also have special Medicare rights if your coverage for hospital care, home health care, skilled nursing facility care, or Comprehensive Outpatient

**Rehabilitation Facility (CORF)** services is ending. For more information about these rights, refer to Chapter 9 of the RiverSpring MAP Evidence of Coverage.

### What To Do If You Want To Appeal A Decision About Your Care

If we say no to your request for coverage for a medical item or service, you decide if you want to make an appeal.

- If we say no, you have the right to make an appeal and ask us to reconsider this decision. Making an appeal means trying again to get the medical care coverage you want.
- If you decide to make an appeal, it means you are going on to Level 1 of the appeals process (see below).
- RiverSpring MAP can also explain the complaints and appeals processes available to you depending on your complaint. You can call the Quality Department at 1-800-362-2266 to get more information on your rights and the options available to you.

At any time in the process, you, or someone you trust can also file a complaint about the review time with the New York State Department of Health by calling 1-866-712-7197.

#### Section 2: Level 1 Appeals (also known as a Plan Level Appeal)

Information in this section applies to all of your Medicare and most of your Medicaid benefits. This information does not apply to your Medicare Part D prescription drug benefits.

There are some treatments and services that you need approval for before you get them or to be able to keep getting them. This is called prior authorization. Asking for approval of a treatment or service is called a service authorization request. We describe this process earlier in Section 1 of this chapter. If we decide to deny a service authorization request or to approve it for an amount that is less than asked for, you will receive a notice called an Integrated Coverage Determination Notice.

If you receive an Integrated Coverage Determination Notice and disagree with our decision, you have the right to make an appeal. Making an appeal means trying to get the medical item or service you want by asking us to review your request again.

#### You can file a Level 1 Appeal:

When you appeal a decision for the first time, this is called a Level 1 Appeal, or a Plan Appeal. In this appeal, we review the decision we made to see if we properly followed all the rules. Different reviewers handle your appeal than the ones who made the original unfavorable decision. When we complete the review, we will give you our decision. Under certain circumstances, which we discuss below, you can request a fast appeal.

#### Steps to file a Level 1 Appeal:

• If you are not satisfied with our decision, you have **60 days** from the date on the Integrated Coverage Determination Notice to file an appeal. If you miss this deadline

and have a good reason for missing it, we may give you more time to file your appeal. Examples of good cause for missing the deadline may include if you had a serious illness that kept you from contacting us or if we gave you incorrect or incomplete information about the deadline for asking for an appeal.

- If you are appealing a decision we made about coverage for care you have not gotten yet, you and/or your provider will need to decide if you need a "fast appeal."
  - The requirements and procedures for getting a fast appeal are the same as for getting a "fast track service authorization." To ask for a fast appeal, follow the instructions for asking for a fast track service authorization. (These instructions are given in Section 1, in the Fast Track Process section.)
  - If your provider tells us that your health requires a fast appeal, we will give you a fast appeal.
  - If your case was a concurrent review where we were reviewing a service you are already getting, you will automatically get a fast appeal.
- You can file an appeal yourself or ask someone you trust to file the Level 1 Appeal for you. You can call the Quality Department at 1-800-362-2266 if you need help filing a Level 1 Appeal.
  - Only someone you name in writing can represent you during your appeal. If you want a friend, relative, or other person to be your representative during your appeal, you can complete the Appeal Request Form that was attached to the Integrated Coverage Determination Notice, complete an "Appointment of Representative" form, or write and sign a letter naming your representative.

To get an "Appointment of Representative" form, call Member Services and ask for the form. You can also get the form on the Medicare website at <a href="https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/CMS-Forms/CMS-Forms/downloads/cms1696.pdf">https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/CMS-Forms/CMS-Forms/downloads/cms1696.pdf</a>, or on our website at <a href="https://www.RiverSpringHealthPlans.org">www.RiverSpringHealthPlans.org</a>. The form gives the person permission to act for you. You must give us a copy of the signed form; OR

- You can write a letter and send it to us. (Your or the person named in the letter as your representative can send us the letter.)
- We will not treat you any differently or act badly toward you because you file a Level 1 Appeal.
- You can make the Level 1 Appeal by phone or in writing.

### Continuing Your Service or Item While Appealing a Decision About Your Care

If we told you we were going to stop, suspend, or reduce services or items that you were already getting, you may be able to keep those services or items during your appeal.

- If we decided to change or stop coverage for a service or item that you currently get, we will send you a notice before taking action.
- If you disagree with the action, you can file a Level 1 Appeal.

- We will continue covering the service or item if you ask for a Level 1 Appeal within 10 calendar days of the date on the Integrated Coverage Determination Notice or by the intended effective date of the action, whichever is later.
- If you meet this deadline, you can keep getting the service or item with no changes while your Level 1 Appeal is pending. You will also keep getting all other services or items (that are not the subject of your appeal) with no changes.
- Note: If your provider is asking that we continue a service or item you are already getting during your appeal, you may need to name your provider as your representative.

#### What happens after we get your Level 1 Appeal

- Within 15 days, we will send you a letter to let you know we are working on your Level 1 Appeal. We will let you know if we need additional information to make our decision.
- We will send you a copy of your case file, free of charge, which includes a copy of the medical records and any other information and records we will use to make the appeal decision. If your Level 1 Appeal is fast tracked, there may be a short time to review this information.
- Qualified health professionals who did not make the first decision will decide appeals
  of clinical matters. At least one will be a clinical peer reviewer.
- Non-clinical decisions will be handled by persons who work at a higher level than the people who worked on your first decision.
- You can also provide information to be used in making the decision in person or in writing. Call us at 1-800-362-2266 if you are not sure what information to give us.
- We will give you the reasons for our decision and our clinical rationale, if it applies. If
  we deny your request or approve it for an amount that is less than you asked for we
  will send you a notice called an Appeal Decision Notice. If we say no to your Level 1
  Appeal, we will automatically send your case on to the next level of the appeals
  process.

#### **Timeframes for a Standard Appeal**

- If we are using the standard appeal timeframes, we must give you our answer on a request within 30 calendar days after we get your appeal if your appeal is about coverage for services you have not gotten yet.
- We will give you our decision sooner if your health condition requires us to.
- However, if you ask for more time or if we need to gather more information that may benefit you, we can take up to 14 more calendar days. If we decide we need to take extra days to make the decision, we will tell you in writing what information is needed and why the delay is in your best interest. We will make a decision as quickly as we can when we receive the necessary information, but no later than 14 days from the day we asked for more information.

- If you believe we should **not** take extra days, you can file a "fast complaint" about our decision to take extra days. When you file a fast complaint, we will give you an answer to your complaint within 24 hours.
- For more information about the process for making complaints, including fast complaints, see Section 5: What To Do If You Have A Complaint About Our Plan, below, for more information.

If we do not give you an answer by the applicable deadline above (or by the end of the extra days we took on your request for a medical item or service), we are required to send your request on to Level 2 of the appeals process where an independent outside organization will review it.

We talk about this review organization and explain what happens at Level 2 of the appeals process in Section 3: Level 2 Appeals.

If our answer is yes to part or all of what you asked for, we must authorize or provide the coverage we have agreed to provide within 72 hours of when we make our decision.

If our answer is no to part or all of what you asked for, to make sure we followed all the rules when we said no to your appeal, we are required to send your appeal to the next level of appeal. When we do this, it means that your appeal is going on to the next level of the appeals process, which is Level 2.

#### **Timeframes for a Fast Appeal**

- When we are using the fast timeframes, we must give you our answer within 72
  hours after we get your appeal. We will give you our answer sooner if your health
  requires us to do so.
- If you ask for more time or if we need to gather more information that may benefit
  you, we can take up to 14 more calendar days. If we decide to take extra days to
  make the decision, we will tell you in writing what information is needed and why the
  delay is in your best interest. We will make a decision as quickly as we can when we
  receive the necessary information, but no later than 14 days from the day we asked
  for more information.
- If we do not give you an answer within 72 hours (or by the end of the extra days we took), we are required to automatically send your request on to Level 2 of the appeals process which is discussed below in Section 3: Level 2 Appeals.

If our answer is yes to part or all of what you asked for, we must authorize or provide the coverage we have agreed to provide within 72 hours after we get your appeal.

If our answer is no to part or all of what you asked for, we will automatically send your appeal to an independent review organization for a Level 2 Appeal. You or someone you trust can also file a complaint with the plan if you don't agree with our decision to take more time to review your action appeal.

• During the Level 2 Appeal, an independent review organization, called the **Administrative Hearing Office or Hearing Office**, reviews our decision on your first appeal. This organization decides whether the decision we made should be changed.

• We tell you about this organization and explain what happens at Level 2 of the appeals process later in Section 3: Level 2 Appeals.

At any time in the process, you or someone you trust can also file a complaint about the review time with the New York State Department of Health by calling 1-866-712-7197.

#### **Section 3: Level 2 Appeals**

Information in this section applies to **all** of your Medicare and most of your Medicaid benefits. This information does not apply to your Medicare Part D prescription drug benefits.

If we say **No** to your Level 1 Appeal, your case will **automatically** be sent on to the next level of the appeals process. During the Level 2 Appeal, the **Hearing Office** reviews our decision for your Level 1 appeal. This organization decides whether the decision we made should be changed.

- The Hearing Office is an independent New York State agency. It is not connected with us. Medicare and Medicaid oversee its work.
- We will send the information about your appeal to this organization. This information
  is called your "case file." You have the right to ask us for a free copy of your case
  file.
- You have a right to give the Hearing Office additional information to support your appeal.
- Reviewers at the **Hearing Office** will take a careful look at all of the information related to your appeal. The **Hearing Office** will contact you to schedule a hearing.
- If you had a fast appeal to our Plan at Level 1 because your health could be seriously harmed by waiting for a decision under a standard timeframe, you will automatically get a fast appeal at Level 2. The review organization must give you an answer to your Level 2 Appeal within 72 hours of when it gets your appeal.
- If the **Hearing Office** needs to gather more information that may benefit you, **it can** take up to 14 more calendar days.

## If you had a standard appeal at Level 1, you will also have a standard appeal at Level 2

- If you had a **standard appeal** to our Plan at Level 1, you will automatically get a **standard appeal** at Level 2.
- The review organization must give you an answer to your Level 2 Appeal within 60 calendar days of when it gets your appeal. There is a total of 90 days available between the date you request a Plan appeal (Level 1) and the date that the Hearing Office decides your Level 2 appeal.

• If the **Hearing Office** needs to gather more information that may benefit you, it can take up to 14 more calendar days.

If you qualified for continuation of benefits when you filed your Level 1 Appeal, your benefits for the service, item, or drug under appeal will also continue during Level 2. Go to page 19 for information about continuing your benefits during Level 1 Appeals.

The Hearing Office will tell you about its decision in writing and explain the reasons for it.

- If the Hearing Office says **yes** to part or all your request, we must authorize the service or give you the item **within one business day of when we get the Hearing Office's decision**.
- If the Hearing Office says no to part or all of your appeal, it means they agree with our Plan that your request (or part of your request) for coverage for medical care should not be approved. (This is called "upholding the decision" or "turning down your appeal.")

If the Hearing Office says no to part or all of your appeal, you can choose whether you want to take your appeal further.

- There are two additional levels in the appeals process after Level 2 (for a total of four levels of appeal).
- If your Level 2 Appeal is turned down, you must decide whether you want to go on to Level 3 and make a third appeal. The written notice you got after your Level 2 Appeal has the details on how to do this.
- The Medicare Appeals Council handles the Level 3 Appeal. After that, you may have the right to ask a federal court to look at your appeal.

At any time in the process, you or someone you trust can also file a complaint about the review time with the New York State Department of Health by calling 1-866-712-7197.

#### Section 4: External Appeals for Medicaid Only

You or your doctor can ask for an External Appeal for Medicaid covered benefits only.

You can ask New York State for an independent **external appeal** if our plan decides to deny coverage for a medical service you and your doctor asked for because it is:

- not medically necessary or
- experimental or investigational or
- not different from care you can get in the Plan's network or
- available from a participating provider who has correct training and experience to meet your needs.

This is called an External Appeal because reviewers who do not work for the health plan or the state make the decision. These reviewers are qualified people approved by New

York State (the State). The service must be in the Plan's benefit package or be an experimental treatment. You do not have to pay for an external appeal.

#### **Before** you appeal to the State:

- You must file a Level 1 appeal with the Plan and get the Plan's Final Adverse Determination; **or**
- You may ask for an expedited External Appeal at the same time if you have not gotten
  the service and you ask for a fast appeal. (Your doctor will have to say an expedited
  Appeal is necessary); or
- You and the Plan may agree to skip the Plan's appeals process and go directly to External Appeal; or
- You can prove the Plan did not follow the rules correctly when processing your Level 1 appeal.

You have **4 months** after you get the Plan's **Appeal Decision Notice** to ask for an External Appeal. If you and the Plan agreed to skip the Plan's appeals process, then you must ask for the External Appeal within 4 months of when you made that agreement.

To ask for an External Appeal, fill out an application and send it to the Department of Financial Services.

- You can call Member Services at 1-800-362-2266 if you need help filing an appeal.
- You and your doctors will have to give information about your medical problem.
- The External Appeal application says what information will be needed.

Here are some ways to get an application:

- Call the Department of Financial Services, 1-800-400-8882
- Go to the Department of Financial Services' website at <a href="www.dfs.ny.gov">www.dfs.ny.gov</a>.
- Contact the Health Plan at 1-800-362-2266; TTY 711.

The reviewer will decide your External Appeal in 30 days. If the External Appeal reviewer asks for more information, more time (up to five work days) may be needed. The reviewer will tell you and the Plan the final decision within two days after making the decision.

You can get a faster decision if your doctor says that a delay will cause serious harm to your health. This is called an **expedited External Appeal**. The External Appeal reviewer will decide an expedited appeal in 72 hours or less. The reviewer will tell you and the Plan the decision right away by phone or fax. Later, the reviewer will send a letter that tells you the decision.

At any time in the process, you or someone you trust can also file a complaint about the review time with the New York State Department of Health by calling 1-866-712-7197.

#### Section 5: What To Do If You Have A Complaint About Our Plan

Information in this section applies to **all** of your Medicare and Medicaid benefits. This information does not apply to your Medicare Part D prescription drug benefits.

We hope our Plan serves you well. If you have a problem with the care or treatment you get from our staff or providers or if you do not like the quality of care or services you get from us, call Member Services at 1-800-362-2266 or write to Member Services. **The formal name for making a complaint is filing a grievance.** 

You can ask someone you trust to file the complaint for you. If you need our help because of a hearing or vision impairment or if you need translation services, we can help you. We will not make things hard for you or take any action against you for filing a complaint.

#### **How to File a Complaint:**

- Usually, calling Member Services is the first step. If there is anything else you need to do, Member Services will let you know. 1-800-362-2266, TTY: 711, 7 days a week, 8 a.m. to 8 p.m. ET.
- If you do not wish to call (or you called and were not satisfied), you can put your complaint in writing and send it to us. If you put your complaint in writing, we will respond to your complaint in writing.
- RiverSpring MAP accepts grievances orally or in writing. You can file a grievance at any time. If you file a grievance in writing, we will respond to you in writing. We will look into your concerns, and obtain any additional information necessary to fully review your grievance. Our Plan will respond to your grievance as fast as your condition requires but no later than 30 calendar days from receiving the grievance. In some circumstances, you may want to file a fast complaint.
- Whether you call or write, you should contact Member Services right away. You
  can make the complaint at any time after you had the problem you want to complain
  about.

#### What happens next:

- If possible, we will answer you right away. If you call us with a complaint, we may be able to give you an answer on the same phone call. If your health condition requires us to answer quickly, we will do that.
- We answer complaints within 30 calendar days.
- If you are making a complaint because we denied your request for a fast service authorization or a fast appeal, we will automatically give you a fast complaint. If you have a fast complaint, it means we will give you an answer within 24 hours.

- If we need more information and the delay is in your best interest or if you ask for more time, we can take up to 14 more calendar days (44 calendar days total) to answer your complaint. If we decide to take extra days, we will tell you in writing.
- However, if you have already asked us for a service authorization or made an appeal, and you think that we are not responding quickly enough, you can also make a complaint about our slowness. Here are examples of when you can make a complaint:
  - If you asked us to give you a fast service authorization or a fast appeal and we said we will not.
  - o If you believe we are not meeting the deadlines for giving you a service authorization or an answer to an appeal you made.
  - When a service authorization we made is reviewed and we are told that we must cover or reimburse you for certain medical services or drugs within certain deadlines and you think we are not meeting the deadlines.
  - When we do not give you a decision on time and we do not forward your case to the Hearing Office by the required deadline.
- If we do not agree with some or all of your complaint or don't take responsibility for the problem you are complaining about, we will let you know. Our response will include our reasons for this answer. We must respond whether we agree with the complaint or not.

#### **Complaint Appeals**

If you disagree with a decision we made about your complaint about your Medicaid benefits, you or someone you trust can file a **complaint appeal** with the Plan.

#### How to make a complaint appeal:

- If you are not satisfied with what we decide, you have at least 60 workdays after hearing from us to file a complaint appeal;
- You can do this yourself or ask someone you trust to file the complaint appeal for you.
- You must make the complaint appeal in writing.
  - o If you make an appeal by phone, you must follow it up in writing.
  - After your call, we will send you a form that summarizes your phone appeal.
  - o If you agree with our summary, you must sign and return the form to us. You can make any needed changes before sending the form back to us.

#### What happens after we get your complaint appeal:

After we get your complaint appeal, we will send you a letter within 15 workdays. The letter will tell you:

- Who is working on your complaint appeal;
- How to contact this person;
- If we need more information.

One or more qualified people will review your complaint appeal. These reviewers are at a higher level than the reviewers who made the first decision about your complaint.

If your complaint appeal involves clinical matters, one or more qualified health professionals will review your case. At least one of them will be a clinical peer reviewer who was not involved in making the first decision about your complaint.

We will let you know our decision within 30 workdays from the time we have all information needed. If a delay would risk your health, you will get our decision in 2 workdays of when we have all the information we need to decide the appeal. We will give you the reasons for our decision and our clinical rationale, if it applies.

If you are still not satisfied, you or someone on your behalf can file a complaint at any time with the New York State Department of Health at 1-866 712-7197.

#### **Participant Ombudsman**

The Participant Ombudsman, called the Independent Consumer Advocacy Network (ICAN), is an independent organization that provides free ombudsman services to long term care recipients in the state of New York. You can call ICAN to get free, independent advice about your coverage, complaint, and appeal options. They can help you manage the appeal process.

Contact ICAN to learn more about their services:

Phone: 1-844-614-8800 (TTY Relay Service: 711) Web: www.icannys.org | Email: ican@cssny.org

#### DISENROLLMENT FROM RIVERSPRING MAP PROGRAM

Enrollees shall not be disenrolled from the Medicaid Advantage Plus Product based on any of the following reasons:

- High utilization of covered medical services, an existing condition or a change in the Enrollee's health, or
- diminished mental capacity or uncooperative or disruptive behavior resulting from his or her special needs unless the behavior results in the Enrollee becoming ineligible for Medicaid Advantage Plus.

#### You Can Choose to Voluntary Disenroll

You can ask to leave the RiverSpring MAP Program at any time for any reason.

To request disenrollment, call 1-800-362-2266. It could take up to six weeks to process, depending on when your request is received. You may disenroll to regular Medicaid or join another health plan as long as you qualify. If you continue to require Community Based Long Term Services and Supports (CBLTSS), like personal care, you must join another

MLTC plan or Home and Community Based Waiver program, in order to receive CBLTSS services.

#### You Will Have to Leave RiverSpring MAP Program if:

- You no longer are enrolled in RiverSpring MAP for your Medicare coverage,
- · You are no longer Medicaid eligible,
- · You need nursing home care, but are not eligible for institutional Medicaid,
- You are out of the Plan's service area for more than 30 consecutive days,
- You permanently move out of RiverSpring MAP service area,
- You are no longer eligible for nursing home level of care as determined using the Community Health Assessment (CHA), unless the termination of the services provided by the Plan could reasonably be expected to result in you being eligible for nursing home level of care within the succeeding six-month period,
- At the point of any reassessment while living in the community, you are determined to no longer demonstrate a functional or clinical need for Community Based Long Term Services and Supports (CBLTSS),
- Your sole service is identified as Social Day Care,
- You join a Home and Community Based Services waiver program, or become a resident of an Office for People with Developmental Disabilities residential program,
- You become a resident of an Office of Mental Health, or Office of Addiction Services and Supports (OASAS) residential program (that is not a MAP plan covered benefit) for forty-five (45) consecutive days or longer.

#### We May Ask You to Leave the RiverSpring MAP Program if:

- You or family member or informal caregiver or other person in the household engages in conduct or behavior that seriously impairs the Plan's ability to furnish services.
- You knowingly provide fraudulent information on an enrollment form, or you permit abuse of an enrollment card in the MAP Program;
- · You fail to complete and submit any necessary consent or release; or
- You fail to pay or make arrangements to pay the amount of money, as determined by the Local District of Social Services (LDSS), owed to the Plan as spenddown/surplus within 30 days after amount first becomes due. We will have made reasonable effort to collect.

Before being involuntarily disenrolled, RiverSpring MAP will obtain the approval of New York Medicaid Choice (NYMC) or entity designated by the State. The effective date of disenrollment will be the first day of the month following the month in which the disenrollment is processed. If you continue to need CBLTSS, you will be required to choose another plan or you will be auto assigned to another plan to provide you with coverage for needed services.

#### **CULTURAL AND LINGUISTIC COMPETENCY**

RiverSpring MAP honors your beliefs and is sensitive to cultural diversity. We respect your culture and cultural identity and work to eliminate cultural disparities. We maintain an inclusive culturally competent provider network and promote and ensure delivery of services in a culturally appropriate manner to all enrollees. This includes but is not limited to those

with limited English skills, diverse cultural and ethnic backgrounds, and diverse faith communities.

#### **MEMBER RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES**

RiverSpring MAP will make every effort to ensure that all members are treated with dignity and respect. At the time of enrollment, your Care Manager will explain your rights and responsibilities to you. If you require interpretation services, your Care Manager will arrange for them. Staff will make every effort in assisting you with exercising your rights.

#### **Member Rights**

- You have the Right to receive medically necessary care.
- You have the Right to timely access to care and services.
- You have the Right to privacy about your medical record and when you get treatment.
- You have the Right to get information on available treatment options and alternatives presented in a manner and language you understand.
- You have the Right to get information in a language you understand; you can get oral translation services free of charge.
- You have the Right to get information necessary to give informed consent before the start of treatment.
- You have the Right to be treated with respect and dignity.
- You have the Right to get a copy of your medical records and ask that the records be amended or corrected.
- You have the Right to take part in decisions about your health care, including the right to refuse treatment.
- You have the Right to be free from any form of restraint or seclusion used as a means of coercion, discipline, convenience or retaliation.
- You have the Right to get care without regard togender, race, health status, color, age, national origin, sexual orientation, marital status or religion.
- You have the Right to be told where, when and how to get the services you need from your managed long term care plan, including how you can get covered benefits from out-of-network providers if they are not available in the plan network.
- You have the Right to complain to the New York State Department of Health or your Local Department of Social Services; and the right to request a fair hearing through the Administrative Hearing Office and/or a New York State External Appeal, where appropriate.

- You have the Right to appoint someone to speak for you about your care and treatment.
- You have the Right to seek assistance from the Participant Ombudsman program.

#### **Member Responsibilities**

- Receiving covered services through RiverSpring MAP.
- Using RiverSpring MAP network providers for covered services to the extent network providers are available.
- Obtaining prior authorization for covered services, except for pre-approved covered services or in emergencies;
- Being seen by your physician if a change in your health status occurs.
- Sharing complete and accurate health information with your health care providers.
- Informing RiverSpring MAP staff of any changes in your health, and making it known if you do not understand or are unable to follow instructions.
- Following the plan of care recommended by the RiverSpring MAP staff (with your input.)
- Cooperating with and being respectful with the RiverSpring MAP staff and not discriminating against RiverSpring MAP staff because of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, mental or physical ability, sexual orientation or marital status.
- Notifying RiverSpring MAP within two business days of receiving non-covered or nonpre-approved services.
- Notifying your RiverSpring MAP health care team in advance whenever you will not be home to receive services or care that has been arranged for you.
- Informing RiverSpring MAP before permanently moving out of the service area, or of any lengthy absence from the service area.
- Your actions if you refuse treatment or do not follow the instructions of your caregiver.
- Meeting your financial obligations.

#### **Advance Directives**

Advance Directives are legal documents that ensure that your requests are fulfilled in the event you cannot make decisions for yourself. Advance directives can come in the form of a Health Care Proxy, a Living Will or a Do Not Resuscitate Order. These documents can instruct what care you wish to be given under certain circumstances, and/or they can authorize a particular family member or friend to make decisions on your behalf.

It is your right to make advance directives as you wish. It is most important for you to document how you would like your care to continue if you are no longer able to communicate with providers in an informed way due to illness or injury. Please contact your Care Manager for assistance in completing these documents. If you already have an advanced directive, please share a copy with your Care Manager.

#### **Information Available on Request**

- Information regarding the structure and operation of RiverSpring MAP.
- Specific clinical review criteria relating to a particular health condition and other information that RiverSpring MAP considers when authorizing services.
- Policies and procedures on protected health information.
- Written description of the organizational arrangements and ongoing procedures of the quality assurance and performance improvement program.
- Provider credentialing policies.
- A recent copy of the RiverSpring MAP certified financial statement; and policies and procedures used by RiverSpring MAP to determine eligibility of a provider

#### **ELECTRONIC NOTICE OPTION**

RiverSpring MAP and our vendors can send you notices about service authorizations, plan appeals, complaints and complaint appeals electronically, instead of by phone or mail.

We can send these notices to you by email.

If you want to get these notices electronically, you must ask us. To ask for electronic notices, contact us by phone, email, or mail:

Phone	1-800-362-2266; TTY users call 711
Email	RecordsRequest@elderservehealth.org
Mail	80 West 225 St., Bronx, NY 10463

#### When you contact us, you must:

- Tell us how you want to get notices that are normally sent by mail,
- Tell us how you want to get notices that are normally made by phone call, and
- Give us your contact information (mobile phone number, email address, fax number, etc.).

RiverSpring MAP will let you know by mail that you have asked to get notices electronically.

#### NOTICE OF NON-DISCRIMINATION

**RiverSpring MAP (HMO D-SNP)** complies with Federal civil rights laws. **RiverSpring MAP** does not exclude people or treat them differently because of race, color, national origin, age, disability, or sex.

## **RiverSpring MAP** provides the following:

- Free aids and services to people with disabilities to help you communicate with us, such as:
  - Qualified sign language interpreters
  - Written information in other formats (large print, audio, accessible electronic formats, other formats)
- Free language services to people whose first language is not English, such as:
  - Qualified interpreters
  - Information written in other languages

If you need these services, call **RiverSpring MAP** at 1-800 -362-2266. For TTY/TDD services, call 711.

If you believe that **RiverSpring MAP** has not given you these services or treated you differently because of race, color, national origin, age, disability, or sex, you can file a grievance with **RiverSpring MAP** by:

Mail: 80 West 225<sup>th</sup> Street, Bronx, New York 10463 Phone: (800) 362-2266 (for TTY/TDD services, call 711)

Fax: (888) 341-5009

In person: 80 West 225<sup>th</sup> Street, Bronx, New York 10463

Email: mltcqadept@elderservehealth.org

You can also file a civil rights complaint with the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Office for Civil Rights by:

Web: Office for Civil Rights Complaint Portal at

https://ocrportal.hhs.gov/ocr/portal/lobby.jsf

Mail: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

200 Independence Avenue SW., Room 509F, HHH Building

Washington, DC 20201

Complaint forms are available at

http://www.hhs.gov/ocr/office/file/index.html

Phone: 1-800-368-1019 (TTY/TDD 800-537-7697)

#### Multi-language Interpreter Services

**English:** We have free interpreter services to answer any questions you may have about our health or drug plan. To get an interpreter, just call us at 1-800-362-2266. Someone who speaks English/Language can help you. This is a free service.

**Spanish:** Tenemos servicios de intérprete sin costo alguno para responder cualquier pregunta que pueda tener sobre nuestro plan de salud o medicamentos. Para hablar con un intérprete, por favor llame al 1-800-362-2266. Alguien que hable español le podrá ayudar. Este es un servicio gratuito.

Chinese Mandarin: 我们提供免费的翻译服务,帮助您解答关于健康或药物保险的任何疑问。如果您需要此翻译服务,请致电 1-800-362-2266。我们的中文工作人员很乐意帮助您。 这是一项免费服务。

Chinese Cantonese: 您對我們的健康或藥物保險可能存有疑問,為此我們提供免費的翻譯 服務。如需翻譯服務,請致電 1-800-362-2266。我們講中文的人員將樂意為您提供幫助。這 是一項免費服務。

**Tagalog:** Mayroon kaming libreng serbisyo sa pagsasaling-wika upang masagot ang anumang mga katanungan ninyo hinggil sa aming planong pangkalusugan o panggamot. Upang makakuha ng tagasaling-wika, tawagan lamang kami sa 1-800-362-2266. Maaari kayong tulungan ng isang nakakapagsalita ng Tagalog. Ito ay libreng serbisyo.

**French:** Nous proposons des services gratuits d'interprétation pour répondre à toutes vos questions relatives à notre régime de santé ou d'assurance-médicaments. Pour accéder au service d'interprétation, il vous suffit de nous appeler au 1-800-362-2266. Un interlocuteur parlant Français pourra vous aider. Ce service est gratuit.

Vietnamese: Chúng tôi có dịch vụ thông dịch miễn phí để trả lời các câu hỏi về chương sức khỏe và chương trình thuốc men. Nếu quí vị cần thông dịch viên xin gọi 1-800-362-2266 sẽ có nhân viên nói tiếng Việt giúp đỡ quí vi. Đây là dịch vụ miễn phí.

**German:** Unser kostenloser Dolmetscherservice beantwortet Ihren Fragen zu unserem Gesundheits- und Arzneimittelplan. Unsere Dolmetscher erreichen Sie unter 1-800-362-2266. Man wird Ihnen dort auf Deutsch weiterhelfen. Dieser Service ist kostenlos.

**Korean:** 당사는 의료 보험 또는 약품 보험에 관한 질문에 답해 드리고자 무료 통역 서비스를 제공하고 있습니다. 통역 서비스를 이용하려면 전화 1-800-362-2266번으로 문의해 주십시오. 한국어를 하는 담당자가 도와 드릴 것입니다. 이 서비스는 무료로 운영됩니다.

**Russian:** Если у вас возникнут вопросы относительно страхового или медикаментного плана, вы можете воспользоваться нашими бесплатными услугами переводчиков. Чтобы воспользоваться услугами переводчика, позвоните

нам по телефону 1-800-362-2266. Вам окажет помощь сотрудник, который говорит по-русски. Данная услуга бесплатная.

Hindi: हमारे स्वास्थ्य या दवा की योजना के बारे में आपके किसी भी प्रश्न के जवाब देने के लिए हमारे पास मुफ्त दुभाषिया सेवाएँ उपलब्ध हैं. एक दुभाषिया प्राप्त करने के लिए, बस हमें 1-800-362-2266 पर फोन करें. कोई व्यक्ति जो हिन्दी बोलता है आपकी मदद कर सकता है. यह एक मुफ्त सेवा है.

**Italian:** È disponibile un servizio di interpretariato gratuito per rispondere a eventuali domande sul nostro piano sanitario e farmaceutico. Per un interprete, contattare il numero 1-800-362-2266. Un nostro incaricato che parla Italianovi fornirà l'assistenza necessaria. È un servizio gratuito.

**Portugués:** Dispomos de serviços de interpretação gratuitos para responder a qualquer questão que tenha acerca do nosso plano de saúde ou de medicação. Para obter um intérprete, contacte-nos através do número 1-800-362-2266. Irá encontrar alguém que fale o idioma Português para o ajudar. Este serviço é gratuito.

French Creole: Nou genyen sèvis entèprèt gratis pou reponn tout kesyon ou ta genyen konsènan plan medikal oswa dwòg nou an. Pou jwenn yon entèprèt, jis rele nou nan 1-800-362-2266. Yon moun ki pale Kreyòl kapab ede w. Sa a se yon sèvis ki gratis.

**Polish:** Umożliwiamy bezpłatne skorzystanie z usług tłumacza ustnego, który pomoże w uzyskaniu odpowiedzi na temat planu zdrowotnego lub dawkowania leków. Aby skorzystać z pomocy tłumacza znającego język polski, należy zadzwonić pod numer 1-800-362-2266. Ta usługa jest bezpłatna.

Japanese: 当社の健康 健康保険と薬品 処方薬プランに関するご質問にお答えするため に、無料の通訳サービスがありますございます。通訳をご用命になるには、1-800-362-2266にお電話ください。日本語を話す人 者 が支援いたします。これは無料のサー ビスです。

Form CMS-10802 (Expires 12/31/25)